














RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event the Equity Shares are issued in the course of QIP under Chapter VIII of SEBI Regulations, 
the relevant date for the purpose of the pricing of the Equity Shares shall be the meeting in which the Board decides to 
open the issue or such other date as may be prescribed under applicable law.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to enter into any arrangement with any agencies or 
bodies for the issue of GDRs and / or ADRs represented by underlying equity shares in the share capital of the Company 
with such features and attributes as are prevalent in international / domestic capital markets for instruments of this nature 
and to provide for the tradability and free transferability thereof in accordance with market practices as per the domestic 
and / or international practice and regulations and under the norms and practices prevalent in the domestic / 
international capital markets and subject to applicable laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER  THAT for the purpose of giving effect to any offer, issue or allotment of Securities, the Board be and is 
hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in absolute 
discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such purpose, including without limitation, the determination of the terms 
thereof, finalization and approval of the offer document(s), private placement offer letter, determining the form, 
proportion and manner of the issue, including the class of investors to whom the Securities are to be allotted, number of 
Securities to be allotted, issue price, premium amount on issue / conversion / exercise / redemption, rate of interest, 
redemption period, fixing record date, listings on one or more stock exchange  in India or abroad, entering into 
arrangements for managing, underwriting, marketing, listing and trading, to issue placement documents and to sign all 
deeds, documents and writings and to pay any fees, commissions, remuneration, expenses relating thereto and for other 
related matters and with power on behalf of the Company to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in 
regard to such offer(s) or issue(s) or allotment(s) as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Securities to be created, issued allotted and offered in terms of this resolution shall be subject 
to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares so issued in all respects shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of the 
Company and shall be listed with the stock exchanges where the Company's existing equity shares are in the process of 
being listed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to appoint merchant bankers, underwriters, depositories, 
custodians, registrars, trustees, bankers, lawyers, advisors and all such agencies as may be involved or concerned in the 
issue and to remunerate them by way of commission, brokerage, fees or the like (including reimbursement of their actual 
expenses) and also to enter into and execute all such arrangements, contracts / agreements, memorandum, 
documents, etc., with such agencies, to seek the listing of Securities on one or more recognized stock exchange(s), to affix 
common seal of the Company on any arrangements, contracts / agreements, memorandum, documents, etc. as may 
be required.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby authorised in 
consultation with the merchant banker(s), advisors and / or other intermediaries as may be appointed in relation to the 
issue of Securities, is authorised to take all actions and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute 
discretion, deem necessary, desirable or expedient for the issue and allotment of Securities and listing thereof with the 
stock exchanges or otherwise as may be required in relation to the issue and to resolve and settle all questions and 
difficulties that may arise in the issue, offer and allotment of Securities, including finalization of the number of Securities to 
be issued in each tranche thereof, form, terms and timing of the issue of Securities including for each tranche of such issue 
of Securities, identification of the investors to whom Securities are to be offered, utilization of the proceeds and other 
related, incidental or ancillary matters as the Board may deem fit at its absolute discretion, to make such other 
applications to concerned statutory or regulatory authorities as may be required in relation to the issue of Securities and to 
agree to such conditions or modifications that may be imposed by any relevant authority or that may otherwise be 
deemed fit or proper by the Board and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things in connection therewith and incidental 
thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion deems fit and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in 
relation to the any of the aforesaid or otherwise in relation to the issue of Securities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate (to the extent permitted by law) all or any of 
the powers herein conferred to any officer of the Company.

(s)
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Place: Mumbai
thDate: 20  August, 2016

By Order of the Board of Directors

Markand Adhikari
    Managing Director
           DIN: 00032016

TH9  ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016





7

and Administration) Rules 2014, the Company shall be required to update its database by incorporating some additional 
details of its members.

Members are therefore requested to submit their e-mail ID and other details vide the e-mail updation form annexed with 
this Annual Report. The same could be done by filling up and signing at the appropriate place in the said form and 
returning the same by post/e-mail. 

The e-mail ID provided shall be updated subject to successful verification of their signatures as per records available with 
the RTA of the Company.

th15. The Notice of the 9  Annual General Meeting and instructions for remote e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy 
Form are being sent by electronic mode to all members whose e-mail address are registered with the 
Company/Depository Participant(s) unless member has requested for hard copy of the same. For members who have not 
registered their e-mail address, physical copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by courier.

16. Route Map for the venue of the proposed Annual General Meeting of the Company, is appearing at the back of the 
Attendance Slip (loose leaf), dispatched along with the Annual Report and are also available on the website of the 
Company i.e. www.tvvision.in.

17. Voting through electronic means:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility to its members to cast their votes 

thelectronically on the resolutions mentioned in the Notice of the 9  Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, 
thdated 20  August, 2016 (the AGM Notice). 

The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide the e-voting facility. 
thThe facility of voting through polling papers shall also be made available at the venue of the 9  AGM. Members who have 

already cast their votes through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again 
at the AGM. 

M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai is appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote 
e-voting and the voting process at the AGM in fair and transparent manner. 

E- Voting is optional.

The instructions for remote e-voting are as under:

(A) In case of member receiving e-mail from NSDL (for members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the 
Company/Depository participant(s)).

a. Open e-mail and open PDF file viz: “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The PDF 
file contains user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that this password is an initial password.

b. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/.

c. Click on Shareholder-login.

d. If the member is already registered with NSDL for e-voting, then enter user ID and password for casting vote. If 
logging in for the first time, please enter the User ID and password as initial password noted in step (a) above. 
Click login.

e. The password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with a new password of their choice with 
minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to 
share the password with any other persons and take utmost care to keep the password confidential.

f. Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.

g. Select “EVEN” of “TV Vision Limited”.

h. Now the members are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

i. Cast vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

j. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
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In pursuance of the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2016 and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS - 2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI), details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting are as 
under:
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Mr. Gautam Adhikari

00026444

rd23  September, 1950 (66 years)

Indian

th30  July, 2007

Director

Diploma in Commercial Art from Govt. of 
Maharashtra -Higher Art Examinations.

He is having an experience of more than 
three decades in the Media &
Entertainment Industry

Non Executive Director liable to retire by 
rotation

Nil

NA

12 (Twelve)

Not Applicable

41,93,129 Equity Shares

1. TV Vision Ltd. 
2. Global Showbiz Pvt. Ltd. 
3. Krishna Showbiz Services Pvt. Ltd.
4. Magnificent Media Vision Pvt. Ltd.
5. Marvel Media Pvt. Ltd.
6. Titanium Merchant Pvt. Ltd.
7. Dream Merchant Content Pvt. Ltd.
8. HHP Broadcasting Services Pvt. Ltd.
9. SAB Entertainment Network Pvt. Ltd.
10. SAB Global Entertainment Media Pvt. 

Ltd.
11. SAB Media Networks Pvt. Ltd.
12. Sri Adhikari Brothers Assets Holding Pvt. 

Ltd.
13. Taran Projects Pvt. Ltd.
14. Armaan Projects Pvt. Ltd.
15. MPCR Broadcasting Service Pvt. Ltd.
16. Prime Global Media Pvt. Ltd.
17. UBJ Broadcasting Pvt. Ltd.

Chairmanship: Nil
Membership:
1. Audit Committee - Sri Adhikari Brothers 

Television Network Limited

Brother of Mr. Markand Adhikari, Managing 
Director

Mr. Pritesh Rajgor

07237198

nd2  May, 1977 (39 years )

Indian

st1  October, 2015

Independent Director

B Com, L.L.B. 

He is practicing Advocate and has an 
experience of more than 10 years in 
handling Civil and Corporate Matters

Independent Director for a term of 5 
th(Five) years upto 30  September, 2020

No remuneration is paid except sitting 
fees, if any

NA

6 (Six)

He has vast acquaintance of practicing 
Advocacy at Bombay High Court of more 
than a decade in handling Civil and 
Corporate Matters which will help the 
Company in various matters. His 
proficiency in the legal field will be 
advantageous to the Company.

Nil

1. Sri Adhikari Brothers Television 
Network Ltd.

Chairmanship: Nil
Membership :
1. Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee - Sri Adhikari Brothers 
Television Network Ltd.

2. S t a k e h o l d e r s '  R e l a t i o n s h i p  
Committee - Sri Adhikari Brothers 
Television Network Ltd

Not Related

Name of  the Director

DIN

Date of Birth (Age)

Nationality

Date of Appointment as Director

Designation

Qualification

Experience/ Expertise

Te r m s  a n d  C o n d i t i o n s  o f  
Appointment or Re-appointment 

Remuneration sought to be paid

Remuneration last drawn

Number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year

Justification for choosing the 
appointees for appointment as 
Independent Directors

Shareholding in the Company 
(Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each

List of Directorship held in other 
Companies 

List of Chairmanship(s) and 
membership(s) in other listed  
Companies

Relationship with other Directors 
of the Company

Mrs. Sandhya Malhotra

06450511

th15  September, 1978 (38 years )

Indian

th11  February, 2016

Independent Director

B.A., L.L.B., F.C.S. 

She has a professional experience of 
around 14 years in the Secretarial and 
Legal field.

Independent Director for a term of 5 (Five) 
thyears upto 10  February, 2021

No remuneration is paid except sitting 
fees, if any

NA

2 (Two)

She is a qualified fellow a member of 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
having rich and vast experience in the 
Secretarial and Legal field. Her expertise 
in the above field will be great asset for the 
Company.

Nil

1. SAB Events & Governance Now 
Media Ltd. 

Chairperson in:
1. Audit Committee - SAB Events & 

Governance Now Media Ltd.
2. S t a k e h o l d e r s '  R e l a t i o n s h i p  

Commi t tee  -  SAB Events  &  
Governance Now Media Ltd

Membership : Nil

Not Related
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to obtain prior approval of the shareholders by way of the Special Resolution. If approved by shareholders, QIP issue shall be 
completed within one year from the date of passing of Special Resolution and in case of issue by way other than QIP, provisions 
as applicable to the proposed issue shall be applicable. Equity Shares, proposed to be issued, shall in all respects rank pari 
passu with the existing equity shares of the Company.

In view of the above, it is proposed to seek approval from the shareholders of the Company to offer, create, issue and allot 
above Securities, in one or more tranches, to Investors inter alia through QIP by way of private placement or otherwise and to 
authorise the Board of Directors (including any Committee (s) thereof authorised for the purpose) to do all such acts, deeds and 
things on the matter. The Board may offer a discount of not more than 5% on the price calculated for the QIP or such other 
discount as may be permitted under said SEBI Regulations.

The proposed resolution is an enabling resolution conferring authority on the Board of Directors to cover all the present and 
future contingencies and corporate requirements in terms of Section 41, 42, 62 and 71 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 14 of 
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Listing Regulations, which requires that new shares are 
first to be offered on pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders of the Company, unless the shareholders at a general meeting 
decide otherwise by passing a Special Resolution. 

Accordingly, consent of the shareholders is being sought pursuant to the provisions of Section 41, 42, 62 and 71 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the Listing Regulations.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out at Item no. 6 of the Notice for approval of the shareholders.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the said 
resolution.
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By Order of the Board of Directors                 

Markand Adhikari
Managing Director

DIN: 00032016
Place: Mumbai

thDate: 20  August, 2016
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TELEVISION CHANNELS:

MASTIII

The Company operates National Channel ‘MASTIII’. The music television channel ‘MASTIII’ continues to maintain the number 
one position in the target market. The music on ‘MASTIII’ has a universal appeal, ranging from peppy to romantic and from retro 
to latest blockbusters. Keeping in mind the viewer's mood during different day parts, the channel telecasts a mix of old and new 
Hindi songs.

thPursuant to Part IV of the Scheme, with the Scheme becoming effective on 15  January, 2016, the Broadcasting Business of the 
HHP, UBJ and MPCR will be demerged into the Company.

DABANGG

“Dabangg” was launched in the Regional Entertainment space which has followed a regional focused programming strategy. 
The Channel is mainly focusing the target market of Uttar Pradesh, Bihar and Jharkhand. The programming strategy of the 
channel includes various entertainment tv shows, Movies, etc. The Channel is widely distributed in the targeted territory.

MAIBOLI

“Maiboli” is a regional Marathi language channel which was launched targeting the audience located in the territory of 
Maharashtra, thus the group has expanded its presence in Marathi market. The channel showcases the Marathi culture and 
heritage. At Maiboli, viewers can listen to Marathi music, watch Marathi movies and Marathi plays and other shows. It has 
popular shows like “Filmy Gappa”, “M.. M.. Marathicha”. Maiboli is a complete family channel, which entertains people of 
Maharashtra in the best possible way. 

DHAMAAL

“Dhamaal” is the youth focused regional channel for the territory of Gujarat. The programming of the channel includes comedy 
shows in the Hindi and regional language combination of music, interaction, vibrancy and the hyperlocal nature of radio on TV. 
The channel is very well distributed in the targeted territory.

DILLAGI

“Dillagi” a dedicated TV channel for small towns & villages of India. Dillagi is a family entertainment channel, believes in 
touching people's hearts through real, genuine emotions that will be depicted through their shows that Indian television has ever 
seen. It stands for the most invaluable things in life – love, family, fun & memories. The Channel offers a distinctive line up of 
comedy & children shows along with combination of latest as well as classic movies.

DIVIDEND:

To conserve the resources for future business requirements of the Company, your Directors do not recommend any payment of 
dividend for the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL:

Authorised Share Capital

Pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was reclassified into 55,00,00,000/- 
comprising of 54,99,00,000/- divided into 5,49,90,000 Equity Shares of 10/- each and 1,00,000/- divided into 10,000 
Redeemable Preference Shares of 10/- each. 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company had allotted 3,49,44,500 Equity Shares of 10/- aggregating to  34,94,45,000/ and 
10,000 Non-cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of 10/- each aggregating to  1,00,000/- on         

th st30  March, 2016 and consequently the existing paid up share capital stand cancelled. Accordingly, as on 31  March, 2016, the 
issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Company is 34,95,45,000 divided into 3,49,44,500 Equity Shares of 10/- 
aggregating to  34,94,45,000/- and 10,000 Non-cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of 10/- each 
aggregating to 1,00,000/-.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There was no change in the nature of business during the Financial Year under review.

` 
` ` `

`

` `
` `

` `
` `
`
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The composition of the Committee(s) after re-constitution is detailed below:

 
Details of the Committees with respect to their terms of reference, meetings and attendance at the meetings held during the 
year, are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance, forming part of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS COMPOSITION:

The Audit Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 with Rules made  
thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The Composition of the Audit Committee is given in the Report on 
Corporate Governance which is annexed to this Report.

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the reports to be submitted to the Board of Directors with respect to auditing and 
accounting matters. It also supervises the Company’s internal control and financial reporting process.

REMUNERATION POLICY:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, Regulation 19 of Listing  
Regulations and on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has adopted a Policy 
on criteria for appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and their remuneration. The salient 
features of the Remuneration Policy are stated in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms part of this Annual Report.

RISK AND AREAS OF CONCERN:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 21 of Listing Regulations, the Company has devised and adopted a Risk Management 
Policy and implemented a mechanism for risk assessment and management. The policy provides for identification of possible 
risks associated with the business of the Company, assessment of the same at regular intervals and taking appropriate 
measures and controls to manage, mitigate and handle them. The key categories of risk covered in the policy are Strategic 
Risks, Financial Risks, Operational Risks and such other risks that may potentially affect the working of the Company. 

The risk management framework is supported by the Board of Directors, Management and the Audit Committee. The Board 
and the Audit Committee periodically review the risks and suggest steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a 
properly defined framework.  

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations. The Policy provides a mechanism for reporting of unethical behavior and frauds 
to the management. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the 
mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in the exceptional cases. The details 
of the Vigil Mechanism Policy are explained in the Report on Corporate Governance and also available on the website of the 
Company at http://www.tvvision.in/pdf/Vigil-Mechanism-or-Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

We affirm that during the financial year 2015-16, no employee or director was denied access to the Audit Committee.
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1. Mr. Arun Khakhar  Member
(Upto 15.04.2015) (Upto 15.04.2015) (Upto 15.04.2015)

2. Mr. Prasannakumar Gawde Chairman Chairman Chairman
(w.e.f. 15.04.2015 (w.e.f. 15.04.2015 (w.e.f. 15.04.2015 
upto 30.09.2015) upto 30.09.2015) upto 30.09.2015)

Member Member Member
(w.e.f 01.10.2015) (w.e.f 01.10.2015) (w.e.f 01.10.2015)

3. Mr. Pritesh Rajgor Chairman Chairman Chairman
(w.e.f 01.10.2015) (w.e.f 01.10.2015) (w.e.f 01.10.2015)
(upto 11.02.2016)

4. Mrs. Sandhya Malhotra Chairperson Member ---
  (w.e.f. 11.02.2016) (w.e.f. 11.02.2016)

5. Mr. Gautam Adhikari Member Member Member

Chairman Member

Sr. No. Name of Director Audit Committee Stakeholders' Nomination and 
Relationship Remuneration
Committee Committee
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING 
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE: 

There was no order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal, which impacts the going concern status of the Company or will 
have bearing on Company's operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN 
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the 
Financial Year 2015-16 to which this financial statements relate and the date of this Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. A.R. Sodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (FRN: 110324W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
th that the 8  Annual General Meeting held on 26  September, 2015 for a term of four consecutive years. The Company has 

received a letter from them to the effect that they are willing to continue as Statutory Auditors of the Company and their  
appointment is within limits prescribed ubder Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and they satisfy the criteria as provided 
under Section 141 of the said Act.

On recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommends the ratification of appointment of M/s. A.R. Sodha & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to audit Financial Statements for the financial year 
2016-17 and to fix their remuneration.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company Policies, safeguarding of assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Board evaluates the Internal Financial Control Systems and strives to maintain the Standards of Internal Financial Control. 
The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management Discussion & Analysis, 
which forms part of this Annual Report.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is in the process of listing its equity shares with the Stock Exchange(s) i.e. BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of 
India Ltd. However, the Company has proactively adopted the principles of Corporate Governance as provided under Listing 
Regulations.

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of Listing Regulations, the following have been made a part of the Annual Report 
and are appended to this report:

• Management Discussion and Analysis 
• Report on Corporate Governance
• Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance

INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 
2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and 
redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. There was no complaint reported on sexual 
harassment during the year under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, details 
regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo for the year under review are 
as follows:

A. Conservation of Energy

a. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – The Operations of the Company are not energy intensive. 
However, Company continues to implement prudent practices for saving electricity and other energy resources in 
day-to-day activities.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Form No. MGT-9

st(As on the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2016)

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i. CIN U64200MH2007PLC172707

ii. Registration Date th30  July, 2007

iii. Name of the Company TV Vision Limited

iv. Category/Sub-Category of the Company Non -  Government Company Limited by shares

v. Address of the Registered Office and 
contact details

vi. Whether listed company In the process of being listed

vii. Name, Address and Contact details of Sharex Dynamic (India) Private Limited  
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sr. No. Name and Description of NIC Code of the %  to total turnover of
main products/ services Product/service the Company

1. 6020 100.00

ANNEXURES TO BOARD’S REPORT

th4  Floor, Adhikari Chambers, Oberoi Complex, 
New Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400053
Tel.: 022-40230000/40230673
FAX: 022-26395459
Email : cs@tvvision.in 
Website : www.tvvision.in

Unit No.1, Luthra Industrial Estate,
Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 072.
Tel No.: 91-22-2851 5644 / 2851 5606
Fax: 91-22-2851 2885
Email ID: sharexindia@vsnl.com 
Website : www.sharexindia.com 

Television Programming and 
Broadcasting Activities
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IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY):

i. Category-wise ShareHolding

Demat Physical Total % of total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of total 

shares 

Category of shareholders No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year % change 

during the 

year 
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A. Promoter          

(1) Indian          

(a) Individual /HUF 6 0 6 0.00 1,09,91,259 0 1,09,91,259 31.45 31.45

(b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(c) State Govts. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(d) Bodies Corp. 2,63,74,994 0 2,63,74,994 100.00 50,01,786 0 50,01,786 14.31 -85.69

(e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(f) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (A)(1) 2,63,75,000 0 2,63,75,000 100.00 1,59,93,045 0 1,59,93,045 45.77 -54.23

(2) Foreign         

(a) NRIs – Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(b) Other – Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(e) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total shareholding of promoters (A) 2,63,75,000 0 2,63,75,000 100.00 1,59,93,045 0 1,59,93,045 45.77 -54.23

B. Public         

(1) Institutions         

(a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 900 0 900 0.00 0.00

(b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 304 0 304 0.00 0.00

(c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(d) State Govts. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 2,02,344 0 2,02,344 0.58 0.58

(g) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00 0 1100 1100 0.00 0.00

(h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(i) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 2,03,548 1100 2,04,648 0.58 0.58

(2) Non Institutions         

(a) Bodies Corp.

(i)  Indian 0 0 0 0.00 14,531,549 1700 1,45,33,249 41.60 41.60

(ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(b) Individuals

(i) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital upto 
` 1 Lakh 0 0 0 0.00 11,58,699 39,518 11,98,217 3.45 3.45

(ii) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of 
` 1 Lakh 0 0 0 0.00 29,74,126 0 29,74,126 8.52 8.52

(c) Others    

Clearing Member 0 0 0 0.00 29,375 0 29,375 0.08 0.08

NRI 0 0 0 0.00 11,840 0 11840 0.03 0.03

Sub-total (B)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 1,87,05,589 41,218 1,87,46,807 53.65 53.65

Total Public Shareholding (B) 0 0 0 0.00 1,89,09,137 42,318 1,89,51,455 54.23 54.23

C. Shares held by custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Grand Total (A+B+C) 2,63,75,000 0 2,63,75,000 100.00 3,49,02,182 42,318 3,49,44,500 100.00 0.00
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No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company 

Sr. 

No.

Promoters’ Name Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Cumulative shareholding 

during the year

Change in Promoters' Shareholding:iii.

1 Mr. Ravi Adhikari  

 At The Beginning Of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes During The Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme 13,00,000 3.72 13,00,000 3.72

 At The End Of The Year   13,00,000 3.72

2 Mr. Heeren  Adhikari  

 At The Beginning Of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes During The Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme 500 0.00 500 0.00

 At The End Of The Year   500 0.00

3 Ms. Swati Heerenkumar Adhikari  

 At The Beginning Of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes During The Year  

 Date  Reason

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme 500 0.0 500 0.00

 At The End Of The Year   500 0.00

4 Ms. Bindu Raman  

 At The Beginning Of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes During The Year  

 Date  Reason

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme 500 0.0 500 0.00

 At The End Of The Year   500 0.00

5 Mr. Kailasnath Adhikari  

 At The Beginning Of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes During The Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme 15,00,000 4.29 15,00,000 4.29

 At The End Of The Year   15,00,000 4.29

6 Mr. Gautam Adhikari  

 At The Beginning Of Year 0 0   

 Changes During The Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme 41,93,129 12.00 41,93,129 12.00

 At The End Of The Year   41,93,129 12.00
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No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

Sr. 

No.

Promoters’ Name Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Cumulative shareholding 

during the year

13 Mr. Anand Shroff (As a nominee of SABTNL)

 At the Beginning of Year 1 0.00   

 Changes during the Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Cancellation of shares 
pursuant to Scheme 1 0.00 0 0.00

 At the end of the year    0 0.00

14 Mr. Suresh Satpute (As a nominee of SABTNL)

 At the Beginning of Year 1 0.00   

 Changes during the Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Cancellation of shares 
pursuant to Scheme 1 0.00 0 0.00

 At the end of the year   0 0.00

15 Mr. Ravi Adhikari (As a nominee of SABTNL)

 At the Beginning of Year 1 0.00   

 Changes during the Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Cancellation of shares 
pursuant to Scheme 1 0.00 0 0.00

 At the end of the year   0 0.00

16 Mr. Santosh Thotam (As a nominee of SABTNL)

 At the Beginning of Year 1 0.00   

 Changes during the Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Cancellation of shares 
pursuant to Scheme 1 0.00 0 0.00

 At the end of the year   0 0.00
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4 Mr. Markand Adhikari

 At the Beginning of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes during the Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme 39,96,630 11.44 36,96,630 11.44

 At the end of the year   36,96,630 11.44

5 Mr. Arun Khakhar (Resigned w.e.f 15.04.2015)

 At the Beginning of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes during the Year No Change during the Year

 At the end of the year   NA NA

6 Mr. Prasannakumar Gawde

 At the Beginning of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes during the Year No Change during the Year

 At the end of the year   0 0.00

7 Mr. Pritesh Rajgor (w.e.f 01.10.2015)

 At the Beginning of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes during the Year No Change during the Year

 At the end of the year   0 0.00

8 Mrs. Sandhya Malhotra (w.e.f 11.02.2016)

 At the Beginning of Year 0 0   

 Changes during the Year No Change during the Year

 At the end of the year   0 0

9 Mr. Anand Shroff (As Nominee of SABTNL)

 At the Beginning of Year 1 0.00   

 Changes during the Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Cancellation of shares pursuant
to  scheme  1 0.00 0 0.00

 At the end of the year   0 0.00

10 Mrs. Jyotsna Kashid

 At the Beginning of Year 0 0   

 Changes during the Year No Change during the Year

 At the end of the year   0 0

11 Mr. Anand Shroff 

 At the Beginning of Year 0 0.00   

 Changes during the Year  

 Date Reason  

 30.03.2016 Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant 
to Scheme  13,500 0.03 13,500 0.03

 At the end of the year   13,500 0.03

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

Sr. 

No.

Name of each of the Director and KMPs Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Cumulative shareholding 

during the year
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ii. Remuneration to other directors:

Non 
Independent

Mr. Gautam 
Adhikari

1.  Sitting Fees Nil 0.15 Nil 0.15

Commission

-  as % of profit

-  others, specify 

3.  Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil

4.  Total Nil 0.15 Nil 0.15

Ceiling as per the 
Companies Act, 2013

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with  Schedule V of 
Section 197 to the Act. 

2.  Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sr. 

No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Non-Executive Directors

Independent Directors

Mr. Arun 
Khakhar

Mr. P. B.
Gawde

Mr. Pritesh 
Rajgor
(w.e.f 
01.10.2015)

(` In Lakhs)

Total

Amount 

(upto 
15.4.2015)

Mrs. Sandhya 
Malhotra
(w.e.f 
11.02.2016)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Particulars of Remuneration

Total Amount  

1. Gross salary

(a) 24.17

(b) -

(c) 
17(3) Income -tax Act, 1961

-

2. Stock Option -

3. Sweat Equity -

4. Commission -

5. Others, please specify -

6. Total

Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer

Mrs. Jyotsna Kashid

2.40

-

-

-

-

-

-

2.40

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Anand Shroff 

21.77

-

-

-

-

-

-

21.77 24.17

Sr. 

No.

Key Managerial Personnel

iii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/Manager/ WTD

Salary as per provisions contained 
in section17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961

Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

Profits in lieu of salary under section 

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NoneIX

(` In Lakhs)
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Digital Advertising is expected to continue to be the fastest growing advertising segment for the media industry in the 
foreseeable future. Currently, in India, it constitutes about 12.6 percent of the total advertising market in 2015 and is expected to 
grow to 26% of the total advertising market by 2020. Increasing second screen consumption, growing mobile internet and 
device penetration and technology innovations will drive the digital advertising growth at a CAGR of 33.5% over the next 5 
years.

The television industry in India is broadly segmented into Content Producers, Broadcasters and Distributors. The size of Indian 
Television Industry is estimated to grow at CAGR 15%. According to the KPMG- FICCI Indian Media and Entertainment Industry 
Report 2016, titled ‘The Future: now streaming’, the contributing factors are FMCG sector ads, e-commerce ads on TV and 
sports pop-up ads. Also, subscription revenue for broadcasters is expected to grow at a CAGR of 19% between 2015 -2020. 

The Regional Entertainment Channels comprises of Regional GECs, Regional Movies and Regional Music which accounted for 
38.99% of the viewership share in 2015, significantly higher than 23.3 % in 2014. Regional markets are expected to grow largely-
in line with national ad markets, contrary to what was seen over the past few years. The key drivers of the growth in the Regional 
Broadcasting spaces are richness of content, continuous innovation and strong cultural and regional affirmative and direct 
engagement with the viewer’s making it possible to reach their hearts. (Source: FICCI- KPMG Indian Media & Entertainment 
Industry Report 2016)

The Entertainment and Media industry has all that it takes to be a star performer of the Indian economy.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREAT

Opportunities

Learning Curve: The immense experience of the promoters in the broadcasting industry has proved to be an added 
advantage in understanding the taste of audience and telecasting differentiated contents which are based on consumer 
behaviour.

Consumer Acceptance for niche category : Growth in number of channels especially in niche categories will give the 
Company/Group new opportunities to expand and create various genres of programming based on demand.

Digitization and Convergence : Digital platforms like DTH, digital cable, IPTV and convergence media is expected to transform 
the landscape of the industry by enabling players to leverage on cross media synergies and attract a whole set of new viewers.

Challenges and Threats

Differentiated Products: Due to increase in the number of channels the content produced in the team needs to be unique to 
attract viewers.

Low Entry Barriers: Vast plethoras of channels are available at viewer’s disposal which has given rise to increased competition. 

Increased Payouts: With a view to produce differentiated content, the production cost has increased. 

Consistency: Consistency of programming quality is essential to maintain targeted revenues.

Financials

1. Share Capital 
stAs  on 31  March 2016, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at 5,500 lakhs divided into 5,499 lakhs  

comprising of 549.9 lakhs Equity Shares of  10/- each and 1 lakh comprising of 0.1 lakh Preference Shares of  10/- 
each.  

stAs  on 31  March 2016, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood at 3,495 lakhs divided into  3,494 lakhs  
comprising of 349.44 lakhs Equity Shares of  10/- each full paid-up and  1 lakh comprising of 0.1 lakh 0.01% Non - 
Convertible Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 10/-each fully paid - up.

2. Reserves And Surplus:
stThe total Reserves and Surplus as at 31  March 2016 amounted to  7,886.31 lakhs. The reserves include Capital Reserves 

of  6,987.49 lakhs, Security Premium Accounts of  1,884.30 lakhs and deficit as per the statement of Profit and Loss of 
 985.48 lakhs.

` ` 
` ` `

` `
` `

`

`
` `

`
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Channel Distribution Risk
The company distributes its channels in the target market through MSO, DTH , cable operators etc. Any shift in the distribution 
network could affect the viewership of the channels.

Revenue Risks
In case of decline in ratings of channels there may be decline in the revenue

Technological Risks
Advancement of the technology for creation of the content and distribution of channel  is necessary with the new technologies 
being adopted by the competitors. 

Regulatory Matters

The business may have a positive or a negative impact on the revenues in future due to changes in the regulatory framework 
and tax laws as compared to the current scenario.

Management continuously monitors and makes efforts to arrest decline or adverse output on any of these factors.

Outlook

Companies in the Indian Media and Entertainment Industry are currently poised for substantial growth, organic as well as 
inorganic. The digital transformation of the industry has already been completed for key markets and is in the implementation 
phase for towns and rural market of India. Given the impetus introduced by digitization, continued growth of regional media, 
strength in the film sector and fast increasing new media businesses, the mid and long-term outlook remains positive, and India 
continues to remain a key strategic market for leading international broadcasters (Source: FICCI- KPMG Indian Media & 
Entertainment Industry Report 2016).

Overseas Reveue

Your company expects to broadcast the existing and/or new channels in the overseas market after taking into the account the 
consumer preferences of the viewers , the geographical location and other regulatory matters. The management expects 
sizeable revenues in the form of exports in the future.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations may be “forward- looking statement” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual 
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the 
Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting demand/ supply and price conditions in the domestic and 
overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and 
other incidental factors.
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Note:

1. The Directorship/s held by Directors as mentioned in table do not include Alternate Directorships and Directorships in 
Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Private Limited Companies.

2. Membership/Chairmanship of only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of all Public Limited 
Companies alone are considered.

3. None of the Independent Director, serves as an Independent Director in more than 7 (Seven) Listed Companies nor 
is a member in more than 10 (Ten) committees or act as Chairman of more than 5 (Five) Committees.

b) Attendance at Meeting of the Board and last Annual General Meeting:

During the financial year 2015-16, the Board met 12 (Twelve) times on following dates:

The attendance of each director at the meetings of Board, at the last annual general meeting, relationship inter-se 
amongst directors and number of shares held is entailed below:

c) Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
25 of the Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on         

th30  March, 2016 to review the performance of Non-independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the Board 
as whole including flow of information from and to the Board/Management.

d) Director’s Familiarization Programme:

The Company undertakes and makes necessary provision of an appropriate induction programme for new 
Directors and ongoing training for existing Directors. The new directors are introduced to the Company culture, 
through appropriate training programmes. Such kind of training programmes helps to develop relationship of the 
Directors with the Company and familiarise them with Company processes. The management provides such 
information and training either at the meeting of Board of Directors or otherwise.

The induction process is designed to build an understanding of the Company processes and fully equip the Directors 
to perform their role on the Board effectively. Upon appointment, Directors receive a Letter of Appointment setting 
out in detail, the terms of appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. The details of 
Director’s induction and familiarization are available on the Company’s website at

e) Code of Conduct:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 
th30  March, 2016 adopted a Code of Conduct for all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel 

(‘the Code’). The Code covers Company’s commitment to honest and ethical personal conduct, fair competition, 

www.tvvision.in/pdf/ .pdfFamiliarization-Programme-for-Independent-Directors
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th st1. 13  April, 2015 7. 1  October, 2015
th st2. 15  April, 2015 8. 21  December, 2015
th th3. 29  May, 2015 9. 14  January, 2016
st th4. 31  May, 2015 10. 11  February, 2016
th th5. 29  June, 2015 11. 10  March, 2016
th th6. 12  August, 2015 12. 30  March, 2016

 Name of the DirectorSr. 
No.

No. of 
Meetings 
of Board 
attended

Attendance 
at last AGM

Relationship Inter-se No. of 
shares held

stas on 31
March, 2016

1. Mr. Gautam Adhikari 12 Yes Brother of Mr. Markand Adhikari 41,93,129

2. Mr. Markand Adhikari 12 Yes Brother of Mr. Gautam Adhikari 39,96,630

3. Mr. Prasannakumar Gawde 12 Yes Not Related 0

4. Mr. Pritesh Ragor 6 NA Not Related 0

5. Mrs. Sandhya Malhotra 2 NA Not Related 0

6. Mr. Arun Khakhar 0 NA Not Related NA
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•

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is duly constituted in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee recommends the 
remuneration payable to executive directors and senior management personnel of the Company. Mrs. Jyotsna Kashid, 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

th During the financial year 2015-16, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 5 (Five) times i.e. 13 April, 2015, 
st st th th31  May, 2015, 1  October, 2015, 11  February, 2016 and 30  March, 2016.

a) Composition and Attendance:

b) Terms of reference:

The Committee is empowered to–

• Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors and 
evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors.

• Identify and access potential individuals with respect to their expertise, skills, attributes, personal and 
professional standing for appointment and re-appointment as Directors / Independent Directors on the Board 
and as Key Managerial Personnel.

• Formulate a policy relating to remuneration of the Directors and the Senior Management Employees of the 
Company.

• Determine terms and conditions for appointment of Independent Directors. The same is also available on the 
website of the Company at 
http://tvvision.in/pdfs/terms-of-appointment-of-independent-director.pdf 

c) Performance Evaluation criteria of Independent Directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 
18 of the Listing Regulations and Schedule II to the Listing Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has formulated a policy on Board Evaluation and evaluation of individual directors. 

The evaluation is based on various factors which are follows:

• Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings
• Level of Participation
• Contribution to the development of strategies and Risk Assessment and Management
• Overall interaction with the other members of the Board

5. REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors and Senior Management Employees.

Remuneration of Managing Director:

• At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Managing Director shall be paid such remuneration as may be 
mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the 
Board of Directors) and the Managing Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Review the functioning of the Vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy.
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Name of the Member Member/Chairman No. of meetings

1. Mr. Prasannakumar Gawde Chairman
(w.e.f. 15.04.2015 upto 30.09.2015)
Member (w.e.f 01.10.2015) 5 5

2. Mrs. Sandhya Malhotra Member  (w.e.f. 11.02.2016) 1 1

3. Mr. Gautam Adhikari Member 5 5

4. Mr. Pritesh Rajgor Chairman 2 2
(w.e.f. 01.10.2015) 

5. Mr. Arun Khakhar Chairman (Upto 15.04.2015) 1 0

Sr.
No.  AttendedEligible to Attend
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Composition:

The Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of the stakeholders including complaints related to transfer of 
shares, non-receipt of annual report, issue of duplicate certificates, transfer/transmission/demat/remat of shares and 
other miscellaneous complaints. This Committee is responsible for the satisfactory redressal of investors’ complaints and 
recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services.

Mrs. Jyotsna Kashid, is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company who oversees the redressal of the 
investors’ grievances.

The detailed particulars of investors’ complaints handled by the Company and its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent during 
the year 2015-16 are as under:

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

a) Annual General Meetings:

The details of Annual General Meetings held in last 3 (Three) years are as under:

b) Details of Special Resolutions Passed in last three Annual General Meetings:

c) Postal Ballot:

During the year under review, no resolution was passed by means of Postal Ballot. None of the business proposed to 
be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing a Special Resolution through Postal Ballot.

Opening at the 
beginning of the year

0

Pending at the end 
of the year

0

Received during the year Resolved during the year

41

 Name of the Director Member / ChairmanSr. No.

1. Mr. Prasannakumar Gawde Chairman 

(w.e.f. 15.04.2015 upto 30.09.2015)

Member (w.e.f 01.10.2015)

2. Mr. Gautam Adhikari Member 

3. Mr. Pritesh Rajgor Chairman (w.e.f 01.10.2015)

4. Mr. Arun Khakhar Member (Upto 15.04.2015)

th26  September, 2015 1. Increase in Borrowing Limits of the Company 
2. Authority to Create Charge on the Assets of the Company. 
3. Increase in Limits for making Loans and Investments 
4. Re-appointment of Mr. Markand Adhikari as Managing Director of the  Company 

th25   September, 2014 1. Increase in Borrowing Limits of the Company 
2. Authority to Create Charge on the Assets of the Company. 

th27   September, 2013 No Special Resolution was passed.

Date of AGM Description of the Special Resolution

th2014-15 8 26  September,  
Oberoi Complex, 

th th2013-14 7 25   September, 2014 12.30 p.m. Andheri (West),
Mumbai - 400 053.

th th2012-13 6 27   September, 2013 10.00 a.m.  

th th2015 10.00 a.m. 4  Floor, Adhikari Chambers,  

Financial Year Location Date Time

00
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requests for dematerialization of shares are promptly processed and confirmation is given to the respective 
depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 
within 21 days.

g) Distribution of Shareholding:
    

stThe shareholding distribution of the equity shares as on 31  March, 2016 is given below:

sth) Shareholding Pattern as on 31  March, 2016:

i) Dematerialization of Shares:
    

stAs on 31  March, 2016 about 99.88% of the Company’s Equity Shares has been held in dematerialized form with 
NSDL & CDSL.

j) Convertible Instruments: 
  

The Company has not issued any ADRs/GDRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments during financial year ended 
st31  March, 2016.

k) Address for correspondence:

For any assistance regarding dematerialization of shares, share transfers, transmissions, change of address, non-
receipt of dividend or any other query relating to shares, the investor can write to Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
(address mentioned above) or :

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mrs. Jyotsna Kashid

th4  Floor, Adhikari Chambers, Oberoi Complex, New Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400053,
Tel. No.: +91-22- 40230000  Fax No.: +91-22- 26395459
Website: www.tvvision.in  Email: cs@tvvision.in 
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Shareholding by 
Nominal Value

Number of % of total number Nominal Value % of Total Nominal
shareholders of shareholders  Shares ( in ` ) Value of shares

1           to  5000 7,019

238

83

38

21

12

14

51

7,476

93.89

3.18

1.11

0.51

0.28

0.16

0.19

0.68

100.00

65,98,660

19,12,770

12,24,520

9,46,190

7,41,160

5,47,680

10,60,030

33,64,13,990

34,94,45,000

1.89

0.55

0.35

0.27

0.21

0.16

0.30

96.27

100.00

5001     to  10000

10001   to  20000

20001   to  30000

30001   to  40000

40001   to  50000

50001   to  100000

100001 and  above

TOTAL 

Category Total no. of shares held
(of  10/- each)`

% of total ShareholdingsSr.
No.

1. Promoters & Promoter Group 1,59,93,045 45.77

2. Mutual Funds / UTI 900 0.00

3. Financial Institutions / Banks 304 0.00

4. Insurance Companies 2,02,344 0.58

5. Foreign Institutional Investors 1,100 0.00

6. Bodies Corporate 1,45,33,249 41.60

7. Individuals 41,72,343 11.94

8. Non Resident Indians 11,840 0.03

9. Clearing Members 29,375 0.08

Total 3,49,44,500 100.00
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Pursuant to the scheme becoming effective, i.e. 15.01.2016, 
of the Company. 

The policy on determination of Material Subsidiary of the Company is available on the website of the Company i.e.
http://www.tvvision.in/pdf/Policy-for-determining-material-subsidiaries.pdf

13. DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS UNDER REGULATION 27 READ WITH SCHEDULE II PART E OF 
THE LISTING REGULATIONS:

The status of compliance with non-mandatory recommendations under Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations is 
provided below:

• Non-Executive Chairman’s Office: Chairman’s office is separate from that of the Managing Director.

Krishna Showbiz Services Private Limited became Associate 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Markand Adhikari, Managing Director of the Company hereby declare that the Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct of the Company during the financial year 2015-16.

                                                                            
Markand Adhikari
Managing Director 

DIN:00032076

Place: Mumbai                   
thDate: 20  August, 2016
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members,
TV Vision Limited

1. We have examined the records concerning Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by 
Limited (“the Company”),for the year ended March 31, 2016, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of 
Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”).

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial statements of 
the Company.

3. We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
in India, to the extent relevant and as per the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

4. On the basis of relevant records and documents maintained and furnished to us and the information and explanations 
given to us by the Company's Management, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 

stRegulation 46(2) and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations for the  year ended 31  March, 2016.

5. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the viability of the Company nor as to the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For A. R. SODHA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 110324W)

A.R. Sodha
Partner
M. No. 31878

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 20  August, 2016

TV Vision 





Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of the section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) In our opinion, there are no observations or comments on the financial transactions, which may have an adverse effect 
on the functioning of the company

stf) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31  March, 2016 taken on record by the Board 
stof Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act.

g) Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“ the 
Act”) is enclosed as Annexure B to this report.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. Refer 
Note 31 to the financial statements.

ii. According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts.

iii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to transfer any amount to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For A. R. Sodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110324W

A. R. Sodha
Partner
M. No.031878

Place : Mumbai
thDate : 29  July, 2016
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10. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanation given to us, we have neither 
come across any instance of fraud on or by the company noticed or reported by its officers or employees during the year 
nor we have been informed of such instances by the management.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of the Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly the clause 3(xii) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 is not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the transaction with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 
where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in financial statements as required by the 
applicable Accounting Standards.

14. According to the information and explanation provide to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly the clause 3(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 is 
not applicable.

15. According to the information and explanation provided to us the company and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor Report) Order 2016 is not applicable.

16. According to the books of accounts and records of the company examined by us, in our opinion the company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For A. R. SODHA & Co.

Chartered Accountant
FRN 110324W

A. R. Sodha
Partner
M. No 31878

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 29  July, 2016
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that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For A.R. Sodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110324W

A.R. Sodha
Partner
M No. 31878

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 29  July, 2016.
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STSTATEMENT OF 16PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 20

53

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

NotesParticulars

INCOME

Revenue from Operations

Sales  859,765,931  660,489,200 

Other Income 18  101,734  872,441 

Total  859,867,665  661,361,642 

EXPENSES

Operational Cost 19  524,649,371  445,922,434 

Employee Benefit Expenses 20  42,017,349  40,283,139 

Other Expenses 21  69,124,951  34,458,912 

Finance Cost 22  39,840,676  43,669,573 

Depreciation 10  116,217,528  48,448,883 

Total  791,849,875  612,782,941 

Profit Before Tax  68,017,790  48,578,701 

Tax Expenses

Current Tax  13,608,829  2,468,890 

Mat Credit Entitlement  (13,608,829)  (2,468,890)

Deferred Tax  22,911,158  14,817,639 

 22,911,158  14,817,639 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax  45,106,632  33,761,062 

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) (Refer Note 26)  1.60  1.28 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are forming an integral part 

of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

For A. R. Sodha & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(FRN:110324W)

A. R. Sodha
Partner
M.No.31878

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 29  July, 2016

Markand Adhikari
Managing Director

Gautam Adhikari
Director

Anand Shroff
VP - Finance & Account & CFO

Jyotsna Kashid
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 General

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) and the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the       
Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost 
convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those 
followed in the previous year. 

1.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make estimates 
and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the 
reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the 
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences 
between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

1.3 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingents Assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate to settle the obligation at 
the balance sheet date. These provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to affect the current 
best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

1.4 Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition as reduced by accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any. Acquisition cost comprises of the purchase price and attributable cost incurred for bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible Fixed Assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The Cost of 
intangible assets comprises of cost of purchase, production cost and any attributable expenditure on making the asset 
ready for its intended use.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress are assets that are not yet ready for their intended use which comprises cost of purchase, 
production cost and related attributable expenditures.

1.5 Depreciation/Amortisation

Tangible Fixed Assets

Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets has been provided based on the useful life of the asset and in the manner as 
prescribed in Schedule  II to  the Companies Act, 2013.

Improvement to Lease Assets is amortised over a balance period of lease on straight line basis.

Depreciation on decoders is provided 100% in the year of purchase or in the year which Company starts commercial 
operations of respective channel, whichever is later.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Business and Commercial Rights are amortized 10% in the year of purchase/production or in the year in which Company 
starts commercial operations of respective channel, whichever is later and remaining 90% are amortized in subsequent 
nine years on a straight line basis. If the management anticipates that there will not be any future economic benefit from 
particular rights then same is amortised fully in the year of such anticipation.
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forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax assets can be 
realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down or written up, to 
reflect the amount that is reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, to be realized.

1.13 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive earnings per share is computed 
and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the 
year, except when the result would be anti-dilutive.

1.14 Impairment of Assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any 
indication of  impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the 
carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net 
selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value 
based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in 
earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of revalued assets.
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As at As at

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ̀  10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share.

The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the amount of equity share capital as at 
st 31 March, 2016 is set out below:

 Numbers   `  Numbers `
Particulars

 As at 31/03/2016 As at 31/03/2015

Particulars

2 Share Capital
Authorized Capital
54,990,000 (P.Y. 55,000,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  549,900,000  550,000,000 
10,000 (P.Y. NIL) Preference shares of `10/- each  100,000  -   
Total  550,000,000  550,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital
34,944,500 (P.Y. 26,375,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  349,445,000  263,750,000 
10,000 (P.Y Nil) 0.01% Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable  100,000  -   
Preference Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up
Total  349,545,000  263,750,000 

At the beginning of the Year  26,375,000  263,750,000  26,375,000  263,750,000 

Less:- Cancelled as per Scheme

(Refer Note 23)  (26,375,000)  (263,750,000)  -    -   

Add:- Issued During the year  34,944,500  349,445,000  -   -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  34,944,500  349,445,000  26,375,000  263,750,000 
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As at As at

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

Particulars
                         

3 Reserves & Surplus

Security Premium Account

Opening Balance  188,430,123  188,430,123 

 188,430,123  188,430,123 

Capital Reserves

Opening Balance -    -   

Add: Addition as per scheme (Refer Note 23)  698,747,833  -   

698,747,833  -   

Surplus/(deficit) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance  (143,654,011)  (176,409,676)

Profit/(Loss) for the year  45,106,632  33,761,062 

Less: WDV of assets whose useful life is over  -    (1,005,397)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss  (98,547,379)  (143,654,011)

Total  788,630,577  44,776,112 

4 Long Term Borrowings

Secured

Term Loans From Bank  580,000,000  193,220,000 

Less : Current Maturity (Included in Other Current Liabilities)  401,500,000  75,375,000 

Total  178,500,000  117,845,000 

Vehicle Loan  698,451  -   

Less : Current Maturity (Included in Other Current Liabilities)  138,191  -   

Total  560,260  -   

The above term loan is secured by way of negetive lien on programme rights, hypothecation of present and future 
receivables and other current assets. Further, the loan is guranteed by personal guarantee of promoter directors and 
corporate guarantee of erstwhile holding company and also collaterally secured by assets belonging to erstwhile holding 
company and promoter directors.

These term loans are repayable on monthly installment basis spreading upto financial year 2018-19 and rate of interest for 
the loan is Base Rate + 3.0% to 5.25%.

5 Long Term Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for compensated absences  1,384,042  1,585,694 

Provision for gratuity  1,336,024  1,691,836 

Total  2,720,066  3,277,530 
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As at As at

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

Particulars
                         

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses  94,730,220  33,807,740 

Other receivables  3,740,395  733,481 

Total  98,470,615  34,541,221 

For the Year ended

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

For the Year endedParticulars

18 Other Income

Miscellaneous Income  101,734  872,441 

Total  101,734  872,441 

19 Operational Cost

Cost of Production and Purchase  236,963,143  204,873,140 

Distribution & Telecast Expenses  287,686,228  241,049,294 

Total  524,649,371  445,922,434 

20 Employee Benefit Expenses

Salary and Allowances  36,267,486  36,679,100 

Director Remuneration  3,600,000  1,800,000 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  1,367,112  1,054,227 

Staff Welfare Expenses  782,751  749,812 

Total  42,017,349  40,283,139 

21 Others Expenses

Communication Expenses  2,357,414  2,049,890 

Rent, Rates & Taxes  2,503,843  3,032,118 

Repairs & Maintenance  4,485,211  833,764 

Insurance Charges  52,998  25,795 

Legal & Professional Charges  14,086,686  8,613,338 

Printing & Stationery  542,005  401,334 

Membership & Subscription   11,100,788  4,049,520 

General Expenses  14,267,777  3,624,819 

Security Expenses  1,315,155  660,187 

Office Expenses  1,757,681  390,020 

Travelling & Conveyance  6,017,619  5,285,620 

Electricity Expenses  4,036,732  4,162,228 

Audit Fees (Refer Note 28)  200,000  200,000 

Business Promotion Expenses  3,362,474  165,595 

Advertisement & Marketing Expenses  3,038,568  964,684 

Total  69,124,951  34,458,912 
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24 Segment Reporting
The Company is operating in single primary business segment i.e. Broadcasting. Accordingly no segment reporting as per 
Accounting Standard 17 has been reported.

25 Related Party Disclosures
a) List of Related Parties & Relationship:-

i. Holding Company:
thSri Adhikari Brothers Television Network Ltd  (Holding Company upto 15  January, 2016)

ii. Subsidiary Companies
HHP Broadcasting Services Pvt.Ltd
UBJ Broadcasting Pvt.LTd
MPCR Broadcasting Services Pvt. Ltd.

iii. Fellow Subsidiary Companies
Westwind Realtors Pvt. Ltd*

iv. Others
Sri Adhikari Brothers Television Network Ltd (Directors having substantial interest after 15.01.2016)

v. Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Gautam Adhikari Director
Markand Adhikari Managing Director
Anand Shroff VP- Finance & Accounts and  Chief Financial Officer
Jyostna Khashid Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

vi Relative of Key Management Personnel
Ravi Adhikari  Son of KMP

* There are no transaction during the year

b) Transaction with Related Parties:

Nature of Transaction

 Holding 
Company

  Subsidiary  
& Fellow 

Subsidiary 
Company 

Key 

Management 
Personnel 

 Others Total
(`)

(P.Y)

(P.Y)

(P.Y)

(P.Y)

(P.Y)

(P.Y)

(P.Y)

Rendering of Services / 
Reimbursement  of expenses

Payment towards Service/
Remuneration

Advance/Loan/Deposit given 
(net)

Outstanding Balance included 
in Current Liability

Outstanding Balance included 
in Non Current Assets

Outstanding Balance included 
in Current Assets

Outstanding Balance included 
in Unsecured Loan

 7,200,384 

 (2,016,524)

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (2,500,000)

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (492,535,966)

 -   

 (-) 

 (-) 

 -   

 (50,361,145)

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 813,645 

 (205,404,069)

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 6,017,400 
 (1,800,000)

 -   

 (-) 

 158,050 

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 3,977,988 

 (-) 

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 2,500,000 

 -   

 (-) 

 -   

 (-) 

 11,178,372 

 (2,016,524)

 6,017,400 
 (1,800,000)

 -   

 (50,361,145)

 158,050 

 2,500,000 

 813,645 

 (205,404,069)

 -   

 (492,535,966)

Note: Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangements, there have been certain transactions with related parties. These transactions 
are non- monetory in nature and the summary of the same has been disclosed in Note 23 above.
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(`)

A) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balance of 

defined benefit obligation

Defined Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  1,691,837  1,505,235  2,114,259  954,651 

Current Service Cost  469,778  555,007  744,598  570,627 

Interest Cost  135,347  135,347  169,141  76,372 

Acturial (Gain)/Loss  (473,874)  (503,752)  (471,812)  932,339 

Benefits Paid  (269,135)  -    (710,797)  (419,730)

Defined Benefit Obligation at year end  1,553,953  1,691,837  1,845,389  2,114,259 

B) Reconciliation of Opening and closing balance of 

fair value of assets

Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the year  -    -   

Expected return on plan assets  -    -   

Acturial Gain/(Loss)  17,286  -   NA

Employer Contribution  469,778  -   

Benefits Paid  (269,135)  -   

Fair Value of Plan assets at year end  217,929  -   

Actual Return on Plan assets  27,284  -   

B) Reconciliation of Fair Value of assets and Obligation

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 31st March  217,929  -    -    -   

Present Value of obligation as at 31st March  1,553,953  1,691,837  1,845,389  2,114,259 

Amont Recogniosed in Balance Sheet  1,336,024  1,691,837  1,845,389  2,114,259 

C) Expenses recognised during the year 

Current Service Cost  469,778  555,007  744,598  570,627 

Interest Cost  135,347  135,347  169,141  76,372

Expected return on plan assets  -    -   - -

Acturial (Gain)/Loss  (491,160)  (503,752)  (471,812)  932,339 

Net Cost  113,965  186,602  441,927  1,579,338 

E) Investment Details

LIC Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Policy 14.02%  -    NA 

D) Actuarial Assumption

Mortality Table (LIC)       Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)Ult

Discount Rate (Per Annum) 8%

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets (Per Annum) NA

Rate of Escalation in Salary (Per Annum) 5%

31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Particulars

Gratuity - Funded Leave Encashment - UnFunded

(`)
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2016 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary 

stcompany, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31  March, 2016 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in annexure.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. Refer 
Note 32 to the financial statements.

ii. According to information and explanation given to us, the group has not entered into any long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts.

iii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Holding Company is not required to transfer any 
amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

For A. R. Sodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110324W

A. R. Sodha
Partner
M. No.031878

Place : Mumbai
thDate : 29  July, 2016
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improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies which are companies 
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI

For A. R. Sodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110324W

A. R. Sodha
Partner
M. No.031878

Place : Mumbai
thDate : 29  July, 2016
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For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

NotesParticulars

INCOME

Revenue from Operations

Sales 18  1,369,492,794  1,266,078,286 

Other Income 19  1,229,592  1,108,476 

Total  1,370,722,386  1,267,186,762 

EXPENSES

Operational Cost 20  886,241,068  832,064,138 

Employee Benefit Expenses 21  42,017,349  40,283,139 

Other Expenses 22  78,849,483  48,073,625 

Finance Cost 23  102,958,208  147,426,687 

Depreciation 10  178,821,580  130,206,916 

Total  1,288,887,688  1,198,054,505 

Profit Before Tax  81,834,698  69,132,257 

Tax Expenses

Current Tax  14,209,015  2,468,890 

Mat Credit Entitlement  (13,608,829)  (2,468,890)

Deferred Tax  26,682,590  21,576,782 

 27,282,776  21,576,782 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax  54,551,921  47,555,475 

Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) in Associate  (3,412,774)  -   

Profit for the period  51,139,147  47,555,475 

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) (Refer Note 28) 1.81 1.80

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are forming an integral part 

of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

For A. R. Sodha & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(FRN:110324W)

A. R. Sodha
Partner
M.No.31878

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 29  July, 2016

Markand Adhikari
Managing Director

Gautam Adhikari
Director

Anand Shroff
VP - Finance & Account & CFO

Jyotsna Kashid
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 General

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) and the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the        
Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost 
convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those 
followed in the previous year. 

1.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation  of the financial statements in conformity with  Indian GAAP requires the Management to make estimates 
and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the 
reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the 
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences 
between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

1.3 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingents Assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate to settle the obligation at 
the balance sheet date. These provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to affect the current 
best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

1.4 Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition as reduced by accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any. Acquisition cost comprises of the purchase price and attributable cost incurred for bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible Fixed Assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The Cost of 
intangible assets comprises of cost of purchase, production cost and any attributable expenditure on making the asset 
ready for its intended use.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress are assets that are not yet ready for their intended use which comprises cost of purchase, 
production cost and related attributable expenditures.

1.5 Depreciation/Amortisation

Tangible Fixed Assets

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided based on the useful life of the asset and in the manner as prescribed in 
Schedule II to  the Companies Act, 2013.

Improvement to Lease Assets is amortised over a balance period of lease on straight line basis.

Depreciation on decoders is provided 100% in the year of purchase or in the year which Company starts commercial 
operations of respective channel, whichever is later.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Business and Commercial Rights are amortized 10% in the year of purchase/production or in the year in which Company 
starts commercial operations of respective channel, whichever is later and remaining 90% are amortized in subsequent 
nine years on a straight line basis.
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forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax assets can be 
realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down or written up, to 
reflect the amount that is reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, to be realized.

1.13 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive earnings per share is computed 
and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the 
year, except when the result would be anti-dilutive.

1.14 Impairment of Assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any 
indication of  impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the 
carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net 
selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value 
based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in 
earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of revalued assets.
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As at As at

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ̀  10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share.

The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the amount of equity share capital as at 
st31  March, 2016 is set out below:

 Numbers   `  Numbers `
Particulars

 As at 31/03/2016 As at 31/03/2015

Particulars

2 Share Capital
Authorized Capital
54,990,000 (P.Y. 55,000,000) Equity Shares of `10/- each  549,900,000  550,000,000 
10,000 (P.Y. NIL) Preference Shares of `10/- each  100,000  -   
Total  550,000,000  550,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital
34,944,500 (P.Y. 26,375,000) Equity Shares of `10/- each  349,445,000  263,750,000 
10,000 (P.Y Nil) 0.01% Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable  100,000  -   
Preference Shares of `10/- each fully paid-up
Total  349,545,000  263,750,000 

At the beginning of the Year  26,375,000  263,750,000  26,375,000  263,750,000 

Less:- Cancelled as per Scheme

(Refer Note 25)  (26,375,000)  (263,750,000)  -    -   

Add:- Issued During the year  34,944,500  349,445,000  -   -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  34,944,500  349,445,000  26,375,000  263,750,000 
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As at As at

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

Particulars
                         

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Reserve & Surplus

Security Premium Account

Opening Balance  188,430,123  188,430,123 

 188,430,123  188,430,123 

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance  -    -   

Add: Addition as per scheme (Refer Note 25)  855,305,411  -   

 855,305,411  -   

Surplus/(Deficit) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance  (320,607,995) (367,158,075)

Profit/(Loss) for the year  51,139,147  47,555,475 

Less: WDV of assets whose useful life is over  -    (1,005,397)

Net Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss  (269,468,848)  (320,607,996)

Total  774,266,686 (132,177,873)

4 Long Term Borrowings

Secured

Term Loans From Bank  580,000,000  817,120,000 

Less : Current Maturity (Included in Other Current Liabilities)  401,500,000  387,875,000 

 178,500,000  429,245,000 

Vehicle Loan  698,451  -   

Less : Current Maturity (Included in Other Current Liabilities)  138,191  -   

 560,260  -   

Total  179,060,260  429,245,000 

The above term loans are secured by way of lien on Business & Commercial rights, hypothecation of present and future 
receivables and other current assets. Further, the loans are guranteed by personal guarantee of promoter directors and 
corporate guarantee of erstwhile holding company and also collaterally secured by assets belonging to erstwhile holding 
company and promoter directors.

These term loans are repayable on monthly installment basis spreading upto financial year 2018-19 and rate of interest for 
the loan is Base Rate + 3.0% to 5.25%.

5 Long Term Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for compensated absences  1,384,042  1,585,694 

Provision for gratuity  1,336,024  1,691,836 

Total  2,720,066  3,277,530 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

16 Short Term Loans and Advances

(Unsecured, Consider Good)

Advances recoverable in cash or Kind  205,139,274  25,474,183 

 205,139,274  25,474,183 

17 Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses  94,730,220  72,826,281 

Other receivables  4,304,383  10,191,285 

 99,034,603  83,017,566 

18 Revenue from Operation

Sales - Broadcasting  1,362,626,994  1,262,023,286 

Sales - Other Segment  6,865,800  4,055,000 

Total  1,369,492,794  1,266,078,286 

19 Other Income

Miscellaneous Income  1,229,592  1,108,476 

Total  1,229,592  1,108,476 

20 Operational Cost

Cost of Production and Purchase  504,871,248  489,330,819 

Distribution & Telecast Expenses  376,734,120  340,031,319 

Other Direct Cost  4,635,700  2,702,000 

 886,241,068  832,064,138 

21 Employee Benefit Expenses

Salary and Allowances  36,267,486  36,679,100 

Director Remuneration  3,600,000  1,800,000 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  1,367,112  1,054,227 

Staff Welfare Expenses  782,751  749,812 

 42,017,349  40,283,139 
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For the Year ended

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

For the Year endedParticulars

As at As at

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( )` ( )`

                 





NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Following are the effects in Assets and Liabilities and Reserves of the Group pursuant to the Scheme:

PARTICULARS Amt ( )` Amt ( )`

               

                              

                              

                            

                            

                 
               

A Assets Takenover

Broadcasting Division Assets of SABTNL Takenover (Including Investment 

of SABTNL in the Company, Intercompany loan between SABTNL and the 

Comapny and Investment in Krishna Showbiz Serivces Pvt. Ltd.)  1,602,514,167  1,602,514,167 

B Liabilities Takenover

Broadcasting Division Liabilities of SABTNL Takenover  (206,413,756)  (206,413,756)

C Equity Capital and Investment Cancelled

Existing Equity Share Capital Cancelled  263,750,000 

Investment in Company transferred from SABTNL cancelled  (455,000,000)  (191,250,000)

D Issue of Shares

Equity Shares Issued  (349,445,000)

Preference Shares Issued  (100,000)  (349,545,000)

Amount of Capital Reserve Created (A-B+C)  855,305,411 

26 Segment Reporting

The Group is operating in four business segment i.e. Broadcasting, Editing and Post production, Outdoor Media and 
Animation and Graphics. Since the activity of the segments other than Broadcasting are not material considering the 
overall activity of the group, segment reporting as per Accounting Standard 17 is not reported. Also the Group does not 
have any segment based on Geographical Location.

27 Related Party Disclosures

a) List of Related Parties & Relationship:-

i. Holding Company:
thSri Adhikari Brothers Television Network Ltd (Holding  upto 15  January 2016- Refer Note 25)

ii. Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Gautam Adhikari Director
Markand Adhikari Managing Director
Anand Shroff VP-Finance & Accounts and Chief Financial Officer
Jyotsna Kashid Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

iii. Fellow Subsidiary Companies
Westwind Realtors Pvt. Ltd*

stMaiboli Broadcasting Private Ltd (Fellow Subsidiary upto 31  March 2015)

iv. Others
Sri Adhikari Brothers Television Network Ltd (Directors having substantial interest- Refer Note 25)

v. Relative of Key Management Personnel
Ravi Adhikari Son of KMP

* There were no transactions during the year
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Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

             

30 Payment to Auditors (excluding Service Tax)                  (`)

Statutory Audit Fees  160,000  160,000 

Tax Audit Fees  40,000  40,000 

Others included in Professional Charges  10,000  5,500 

 210,000  205,500 

             

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

             

31 Employee Benefits Plan

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans are recognised and charged off for the year are as under:                    (`)

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 1,271,796 966,440 

Defined Benefit Plan

Employees' gratuity and leave encashment scheme is defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined 
based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of service as giving rise to 
additional need of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit seperately to build up the final obligation.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

89

A) Reconciliation of Opening and closing balance of 

defined benefit obligation

Defined Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  1,691,837  1,505,235  2,114,259  954,651 

Current Service Cost  469,778  555,007  744,598  570,627 

Interest Cost  135,347  135,347  169,141  76,372 

Acturial (Gain)/Loss  (473,874)  (503,752)  (471,812)  932,339 

Benefits Paid  (269,135)  -    (710,797)  (419,730)

Defined Benefit Obligation at year end  1,553,953  1,691,837  1,845,389  2,114,259 

B) Reconciliation of Opening and closing balance of 

fair value of assets

Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the year  -    -   

Expected return on plan assets  -    -   

Acturial Gain/(Loss)  17,286  -   NA

Employer Contribution  469,778  -   

Benefits Paid  (269,135)  -   

Fair Value of Plan assets at year end  217,929  -   

Actual Return on Plan assets  27,284  -   

B) Reconciliation of Fair Value of assets and Obligation

stFair Value of Plan Assets as at 31  March  217,929  -    -    -   
stPresent Value of obligation as at 31  March  1,553,953  1,691,837  1,845,389  2,114,259 

Amont Recogniosed in Balance Sheet  1,336,024  1,691,837  1,845,389  2,114,259 

31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015Particulars

Gratuity - Funded Leave Encashment - UnFunded

(`)
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Form AOC-1 

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiary Companies/Associate 
Companies/Joint Ventures

 (Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

PART A - SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(Amounts in )`

Name of the Subsidiary(ies) HHP Broadcasting 
Services Private 
Limited (HHP)

UBJ Broadcasting 
Private Limited 

(UBJ)

MPCR Broadcasting 
Service Private 
Limited (MPCR)

Particulars 1 2 3

The date since when subsidiary was acquried 01.08.2011

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting period 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2016

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Share Capital  5,000,000  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Reserves (1,993,863) (4,168,000) (4,789,252)

Total Assets  4,818,316  5,282,842  1,053,943 

Total Liabilities  1,812,179  4,450,842  843,195 

Investments (except in subsidiary companies)  NIL  NIL  NIL 

Turnover  2,186,000  3,639,800  1,040,000 

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation  18,083,337  343,655 (4,610,083)

Provision for Taxation  5,669,245  119,252 1,416,879 

Profit /(Loss) after Taxation  12,414,092  224,403 (3,193,205)

Proposed Dividend  NIL  NIL  NIL 

% of shareholding 100% 100% 100%

01.08.2011 01.08.2011

1 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: None

2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: None 
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Resolution Resolutions Vote (Optional see Note 2)

No. (Please mention no. of share(s))

Ordinary Business: For Against Abstain

1 Ordinary Resolution for adoption of Audited Financial Statements 
(including the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements) for 

stthe year ended 31  March, 2016 along with Reports of the 
Directors’ and  Auditors’

2 Ordinary Resolution for appointment of a director in place of Mr. 
Gautam Adhikari, (DIN: 00026444) Director who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3 Ordinary Resolution for ratification of appointment of M/s. A. R. 
Sodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (FRN: 110324W) 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the 

thconclusion of 8  Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 
th11  Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration.

Special Business:

4 Ordinary Resolution for Appointment of Mr. Pritesh Rajgor (DIN: 
07237198) as an Independent Director of the Company.

5 Ordinary Resolution for Appointment of Mrs. Sandhya Malhotra 
(DIN: 06450511) as an Independent Director of the Company.

6 Special Resolution for Authority to the Board of Directors to create 
offer, issue and allot further securities of the Company. 

Signed this ............................... day of ............................... , 2016

Signature of shareholder ................................................................ 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) .............................................................
  

Note: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for, against or abstain column blank against any or all 
resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she may deemed appropriate. 

3.   In case of multiple proxies, the Proxy later in time shall be accepted.

4.   Proxy need not to be the shareholder of the Company.

Affix

Revenue

Stamp
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